RAY TOWNHOMES

Drainage Report

Prepared For:

Custom Comfort Homes, LLC

8324 59th Ave NE Marysville, WA 98270

April 15, 2020

Prepared By:

PACE Engineers, Inc. 1724 W. Marine View Dr. #140 Everett, WA 98201 p. 425.486.6533

RAY TOWNHOMES

DRAINAGE REPORT

Prepared For:

Custom Comfort Homes, LLC 8324 59th Ave NE Marysville, WA 98270

April 15, 2020

Prepared By:



Ken McIntyre, PE PACE Engineers, Inc. 1724 W. Marine View Dr, #140 Kirkland, WA 98033-3417 425.486.6533

PACE Project No. 415-001-18

PROJECT CERTIFICATION

The technical material and data contained in this report was prepared by PACE Engineers, Inc., under the supervision of the below listed individuals. Those responsible staff members who are registered professional engineers are licensed in the State of Washington.



PACE Engineers, Inc.

1724 W. Marine View Dr. #140 Everett, WA 98201 Phone: 425.486.6533 www.paceengrs.com

TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION# TITLE

PAGE

1.	PROJECT OVERVIEW	1
2.	MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS	3
3.	PREPARATION OF STORMWATER SITE PLANS	5
4.	STORMWATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN (SWPPP)	7
5.	SOURCE CONTROL OF POLLUTION	9
6.	PRESERVATION OF NATURAL DRAINAGE SYSTEMS AND OUTFALL	10
7.	ON-SITE STORMWATER MANAGEMENT	11
8.	RUNOFF TREATMENT	14
9.	FLOW CONTROL	16
10.	WETLANDS PROTECTION	17
11.	OPERATION & MAINTENANCE	18

LIST OF TABLES

	-			
Table	1:	Property	Summary	 . 1

LIST OF FIGURES

Figure 1:	Vicinity Map	1
i igai e i i		

APPENDICES

- APPENDIX 'A': Resource Review Documents
- APPENDIX 'B': Study Area Evaluation
- APPENDIX 'C': Basin Mapping
- APPENDIX 'D': West Basin Modeling Calculations
- APPENDIX 'E': East Basin Modeling Calculations

1. **PROJECT OVERVIEW**

The Ray Townhomes project proposes the development of two existing parcels into a Planned Residential Development which maintains two existing homes near the east edge of the site and adds 23 new townhome units further to the west. The project lies within the City of Marysville's Low Density Multiple Family (R-12) zone.

The project is located within the SW ¼ of Section 15, Township 30 N, Range 05 E, W.M. More specifically, the project lies at 9820 55th Ave NE, in the City of Marysville, and occupies the Snohomish County Tax Parcels identified in the table below. A vicinity map is also provided below.

Table 1: Property Summary				
Snohomish County Tax Lot #	Size			
30051500305000	1.91 ac			
30051500302100	1.00 ac			



The project has approximately 200 feet of frontage on the west side of 55th Ave NE, which is classified as a neighborhood collector. The project proposes a local access road interior to the site, in order to provide access to the proposed lots and townhome units. The proposed local access road will terminate in a cul-de-sac to provide a means of turn-around for delivery, trash collection, and emergency service vehicles. The surrounding parcels to the north and west have previously been developed, and the surrounding parcel to the south remains undeveloped, so there are currently no other access points available to the site.

The project is subject to the provisions of the Marysville Municipal Code, the City's Design and Construction Standards, and the 2014 edition of the WA State Department of Ecology's <u>Stormwater Management Manual for Western Washington</u> (SWMMWW).

2. MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS

The project is a new development which proposes more than 5,000 square feet of new/replaced hard surface area, and therefore is required to satisfy all nine of the minimum requirements stipulated by the 2014 edition of the WA Dept of Ecology's <u>Stormwater Management Manual for</u> <u>Western</u> Washington (SWMMWW).

2.1 MINIMUM REQUIREMENT #1: PREPARATION OF STORMWATER SITE PLANS

This report, along with the accompanying plans are intended to satisfy the stormwater site plan requirements. This requirement includes research of applicable site information, evaluation of any upstream tributary drainage basins and the downstream flowpath. These items are addressed in Chapter 3 of this report.

2.1 MINIMUM REQUIREMENT #2: CONSTRUCTION STORMWATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN (SWPPP)

A temporary erosion & sediment control plan will be provided with the final engineering drawings and a separate SWPPP report will also be provided. A preliminary stormwater pollution prevention discussion is provided in Section 4 of this report.

2.2 MINIMUM REQUIREMENT #3: SOURCE CONTROL OF POLLUTION

The project is not a high-use site and is not expected to have many significant pointsources of pollution requiring source control methods. Due to the multi-family nature of the proposed development, the City is requiring a centralized trash-collection area. This area shall be contained within a roofed enclosure as a source control measure.

2.3 MINIMUM REQUIREMENT #4: PRESERVATION OF NATURAL DRAINAGE SYSTEMS AND OUTFALLS

The topography of the site is relatively flat, with a subtle high-point located near the middle of the site, and gradual fall in all directions. The geotechnical report for the site identifies a shallow layer of fill material near the surface, so it is likely that this high-point was raised artificially at some point in the past. The general topography of the region is flat, but appears to fall gently to the south. The lowest portion of the site lies along the west half of the southern property boundary. A large off-site wetland begins at this location, and it appears that site runoff probably collects in this wetland area and continues flowing southerly. There is also a drainage pipe network in the fronting roadway (55th Ave NE), which conveys runoff southerly, which seems to corroborate flow to the south. The project is underlain by a sandy soil unit that is expected to support infiltration of surface runoff, so it is likely that much of the runoff that originates on-site simply infiltrates before discharging as surface runoff. With this in mind, the project is proposing a storm drainage facility along the southern edge of the site, with an overflow route that utilizes the storm pipe in the fronting street.

2.4 MINIMUM REQUIREMENT #5: ONSITE STORMWATER MANAGEMENT

The project is required to either meet the low-impact flow control standard or evaluate a series of low-impact stormwater management features, as outlined in the SWMMWW. This project is electing to evaluate the low-impact stormwater management features, and that evaluation is provided in Section 7 of this report.

2.5 MINIMUM REQUIREMENT #6: RUNOFF TREATMENT

The project is subject to "basic" treatment requirements, as outlined in the SWMMWW. A more detailed discussion of stormwater treatment is provided in Section 8 of this report.

2.6 MINIMUM REQUIREMENT #7: FLOW CONTROL

The project is subject to the flow control requirements outlined in the SWMMWW. A more detailed discussion of the proposed flow control measures is provided in Section 9 of this report.

2.7 MINIMUM REQUIREMENT #8: WETLANDS PROTECTION

The SWMMWW requests an evaluation of wetland hydrology to minimize the effects of urbanization. A critical areas study and mitigation plan is provided separate from this document which discusses the measures being taken to mitigate disturbance proposed within the existing wetland buffer areas. Wetland protection is also discussed further in Section 10 of this report.

2.8 MINIMUM REQUIREMENT #9: OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE

General operations and maintenance recommendations are provided in Section 11 of this report.

3. PREPARATION OF STORMWATER SITE PLANS

This section of the report is intended to address Minimum Requirement #1, as outlined in the SWMMWW.

3.1 RESOURCE REVIEW SUMMARY

A geotechnical report has been prepared for the project, issued on August 21, 2019 by Geotest Engineers. The report generally classifies the underlying soil as a "Marysville Sand" recessional outwash. The report goes on to recommend that the underlying soil is suitable for stormwater infiltration and treatment. The geotechnical report will be submitted to the City of Marysville under separate cover.

The federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) identifies the project site on Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) panel #53061C0708E and is not shown to be in a flood hazard area. A FEMA map has been provided in **Appendix 'A'** of this report.

A wetland delineation report for the project was prepared by Altmann Oliver Associates, LLC on February 12, 2018, which identified an existing wetland that primarily lies south of the project site, but extends slightly across the southern border of the project site. The report identifies a 35-ft buffer from this wetland that occupies a portion of the south edge of the project site.

The WA State Dept. of Ecology's Water Quality Assessment map was consulted to determine if the project may contribute to a 303(d) assessed waterway. There are no 303(d) listed waterways in the ¼-mile downstream flowpath required to be evaluated for this project. A portion of the Water Quality Atlas Map is provided in **Appendix 'A'** of this report.

3.2 UPSTREAM BASIN ANALYSIS

There appears to be a localized high-point on the site, and does not appear to be upstream runoff tributary from the adjacent parcels. The site is bounded on the north by an existing subdivision which collect and convey runoff away from the site. The project is bounded on the west by Cascade Elementary School. While that parcel is fairly flat, it appears from local GIS topography maps that the school property falls gently to the west. The project is bounded to the east by 55th Ave NE, which contains a public storm drainage collection/conveyance system. Finally, the project is bounded to the south by an undeveloped parcel which lies slightly lower than the site itself. With this in mind, there does not appear to be a significant upstream runoff contribution to the site.

3.3 DOWNSTREAM FIELD INSPECTION

A downstream investigation of the site was conducted on September 24, 2019. The conditions at the time of the visit were cloudy and cool, with no significant rainfall having occurred within the previous couple of days. No surface runoff was observed at the site or downstream flowpath during the visit. The downstream system extends southerly along the west edge of 55th Ave NE for the full ¼-mile analysis distance. A map and photos of the downstream flowpath are provided in **Appendix 'B'** of this report.

3.4 DOWNSTREAM DRAINAGE SYSTEM DESCRIPTION

There is a subtle high point near the center of the site. The geotechnical report for the site indicated a shallow layer of fill material in this vicinity, and the surrounding topography appears to gently fall to the south. The lowest point on the site is the edge of an off-site wetland along the south boundary of the site, and it appears that surface runoff flows toward this wetland and continues southeasterly toward 55th Ave SE. The project proposes a storm drainage infiltration facility along the south edge of the property with an overflow that connects to the public storm drainage network in 55th Ave SE.

The public storm drainage network in 55th Ave NE lies along the west side of the right-ofway and conveys runoff southerly beyond the ¼-mile downstream analysis length. The entire downstream system within this zone lies within a series of underground pipes and catch basins.

4. STORMWATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN (SWPPP)

A formal stormwater pollution prevention plan report will be submitted under separate cover, but the discussion below is intended to provide an overview of how the 13 required SWPPP elements will be addressed.

4.1 ELEMENT 1 – PRESERVE VEGETATION/MARK CLEARING LIMITS

The project will identify the intended clearing limits and mark them in the field with highvisibility construction fencing or silt fencing. Critical areas and buffers will also be clearly identified in the field, and the project will retain and stockpile the duff-layer, replacing it on the completed site to the greatest practical extent.

4.2 ELEMENT 2 – ESTABLISH CONSTRUCTION ACCESS

A rock-stabilized construction access will be provided at the entrance to the site. Sediment that is tracked off-site shall be swept at the end of each day, or as determined necessary by the project's erosion/sediment control lead.

4.3 ELEMENT 3 – CONTROL FLOW RATES

A temporary sediment trap will be constructed for the project, and site runoff will be routed to that facility until the permanent stormwater management facility is constructed.

4.4 ELEMENT 4 – INSTALL SEDIMENT CONTROLS

Sediment control is expected to be provided via a temporary sediment trap near the entrance to the site. A series of interceptor trenches will be proposed to route site runoff to this facility. Perimeter silt-fencing will also be installed on the downhill portions of the site, and adjacent to the existing wetland.

4.5 ELEMENT 5 – STABILIZE SOILS

Exposed soils which are expected to remain unworked for an extended period will be stabilized with mulch, seed, or other measures. Soil stockpiles are expected to be covered with plastic or protected with other soil-trapping measures.

4.6 ELEMENT 6 – PROTECT SLOPES

The project is relatively flat and is not expected to construct or expose any steep slopes. No slope protection is expected to be warranted.

4.7 ELEMENT 7 – PROTECT DRAIN INLETS

Catch basin inlet protection devices will be placed in all nearby downstream catch basin grates, as identified on the project's TESC plan.

4.8 ELEMENT 8 – STABILIZE CHANNELS & OUTFALLS

All temporary channels proposed for the project shall be stabilized with rock or vegetation if signs of erosion are observed by the project's erosion/sediment control lead. There are no free outlets proposed that warrant stabilization measures.

4.9 ELEMENT 9 – CONTROL POLLUTANTS

The project is relatively small and is not expected to store contaminants on-site for an extended period of time. Any contaminants that are stored on-site should be protected from vandalism or theft. Maintenance, fueling, and repair of construction equipment should be conducted off-site to the greatest practical extent to reduce the potential for a spill. A concrete washout area shall be provided to keep concrete wash-water from entering the public storm drainage system.

4.10 ELEMENT 10 – CONTROL DE-WATERING

No significant de-watering is expected to be needed on this project.

4.11 ELEMENT 11 – MAINTAIN BMPS

The project shall identify personnel to serve as an erosion/sediment control lead, who can monitor all BMPs at the site and recommend revisions and new BMPs as needed.

4.12 ELEMENT 12 – MANAGE THE PROJECT

The project shall identify personnel to serve as an erosion/sediment control lead, who can monitor site conditions and BMP performance. That person shall recommend revisions as site conditions change.

4.13 ELEMENT 13 – PROTECT LOW-IMPACT DEVELOPMENT BMPS

The project is proposing infiltration-based low-impact stormwater management features. Areas where infiltration facilities are proposed shall be protected from compaction from construction equipment while the site is being developed. These areas will be identified at the onset of construction and disturbance to those areas shall be limited as much as possible.

5. SOURCE CONTROL OF POLLUTION

The project is not an industrial or high-use site, and few significant point sources of pollution are expected to be present. Due to the multi-family nature of the proposed development, the City is requiring a centralized trash-collection facility, which shall be contained within a roofed enclosure, in order to prevent stormwater pollution from the trash collection area.

6. PRESERVATION OF NATURAL DRAINAGE SYSTEMS AND OUTFALL

The topography of the site is relatively flat, with a subtle high-point located near the middle of the site, and gradual fall in all directions. The geotechnical report for the site identifies a shallow layer of fill material near the surface, so it is likely that this high-point was raised artificially at some point in the past. The general topography of the region is flat, but appears to fall gently to the south. The lowest portion of the site lies along the west half of the southern property boundary. A large off-site wetland begins at this location, and it appears that site runoff probably collects in this wetland area and continues flowing southerly. There is also a drainage pipe network in the fronting roadway (55th Ave NE), which conveys runoff southerly, which seems to corroborate flow to the south. The project is underlain by a sandy soil unit that is expected to support infiltration of surface runoff, so it is likely that much of the runoff that originates on-site simply infiltrates before discharging as surface runoff. With this in mind, the project is proposing a storm drainage facility along the southern edge of the site, with an overflow route that utilizes the storm pipe in the fronting street.

7. ON-SITE STORMWATER MANAGEMENT

7.1 SITE HYDROLOGY

7.1.1 Existing Hydrologic Conditions

The site is currently occupied by a couple of homes near the east edge of the site, a detached shed building, and a gravel driveway. The two homes will be retained as part of the development.

The underlying topography is relatively flat, with a localized high point near the middle of the site. The high-point consists of a shallow layer of non-native fill material, as identified in the geotechnical report. The topography of the surrounding region appears to fall gently to the south. In fact, the lowest portion of the site is the edge of an off-site wetland area along the west half of the south property boundary. Once runoff reaches this wetland, it appears that it continues to flow southeasterly toward 55th Ave NE.

The underlying soil has been identified as a sandy soil unit with the capacity to infiltrate surface runoff, so most runoff originating at the project site is expected to infiltrate into the underlying soil before discharging as surface runoff.

For hydrologic modeling purposes, historic conditions for the project site are represented as "forest", since that's what likely existed at the site prior to initial settlement of the area. There is a strip of pavement in the frontage that is tributary to the project site, but will not be disturbed down to subgrade, and therefore is not considered to be "new/replaced" impervious surface. This is not considered part of the project site, as defined in the SWMMWW, so it is represented as existing pavement area. An existing conditions map is provided in **Appendix 'C'** of this report.

7.1.2 Developed Hydrologic Conditions

The project is proposing construction of an internal roadway and a number of townhome units along the north side and west end of the roadway. The project site will be divided into two separate basins, referenced in this report as the "East" and "West" basins. The intent of the design is to provide stormwater management through bioretention for as much of the site as possible. This is done to satisfy the requirements for On-site Stormwater Management (MR#5), Runoff Treatment (MR#6) and Flow Control (MR#7). The bioretention cell is located in the west basin, and most of the site runoff will be tributary to this facility. However, the seasonal high groundwater table is expected to be too shallow to accommodate a bioretention facility at the east end of the site, so a shallow infiltration pond will be provided for the east basin. This will allow for infiltration of stormwater runoff for the east basin, but without the amended soil layer that is provided in the west bioretention cell.

There are two existing homes on the site that are expected to remain. New driveway approaches will be constructed to serve those two buildings so the front yards have been included as part of the developed basin. While those two buildings are not considered part of the project "site", as defined by the SWMMWW, the project intends to construct infiltration trenches in their rear

yards to dispose roof runoff from those two structures. The rear yards of those structures are otherwise expected to remain undisturbed, so that area has not been included as part of the project basin.

A developed conditions map is provided in Appendix 'C' of this report.

7.1.3 Hydrologic Modeling

Hydrologic modeling for the project was performed in order to design the proposed detention/infiltration system. The model was performed using WWHM2012 which is a locally calibrated continuous simulation runoff model approved for use by the Washington State Department of Ecology. The calculations demonstrate that the project complies with applicable flow-control and treatment regulations. Hydrologic modeling calculations are provided in **Appendix 'D'** and **Appendix 'E'** of this report. Input parameters for the hydrologic model are summarized on the basin maps provided in **Appendix 'C'**.

7.2 LOW IMPACT DEVELOPMENT

The proposed project occupies less than 5-acres and is located within the urban growth area. The project is also required to satisfy all nine minimum requirements outlined in the SWMMWW. Therefore, the project is required to either meet the Low Impact Development Performance Standard or evaluate a series of low-impact stormwater management BMPs as specified in List #2 of the SWMMWW. This project is electing to evaluate the low-impact BMPs from List #2. Minimum Requirement #5 requires evaluation of those BMP options in a specific order of preference and implement those BMPs to the greatest feasible extent. The required evaluation is provided below:

Roof Areas:			
Full Dispersion (BMP T5.30)	Not Feasible – The project was cleared of native vegetation at some point in the past, and the required vegetated flowpaths are not available at the project site.		
Bioretention (Vol. V, Ch. 7)	Feasible – Runoff from the proposed roof areas will be directed to a bioretention cell near the southern portion of the site.		
Downspout Dispersion (BMP T5.10B)	Not evaluated – Bioretention will be utilized		
Perforated Stub-Out (BMP T5.10C)	Not evaluated – Bioretention will be utilized		

Other Hard Surfaces:		
Full Dispersion (BMP T5.30)	Not Feasible – The project was cleared of native vegetation at some point in the past, and the required vegetated flowpaths are not available at the project site.	

Permeable Pavement (BMP T5.15)	Not Feasible – The project does not propose a significant amount of pavement outside of the right-of-way. Permeable driveways may be proposed as part of future building permit applications.
Bioretention (Vol. V, Ch. 7)	Feasible – Runoff from most of the site will be directed to a bioretention cell near the southern portion of the site. The eastern portion of the site and project frontage lies at an elevation too low to provide separation between the bottom of a bioretention cell and the expected seasonal high groundwater elevation. With that in mind, a shallow infiltration pond without bioretention soil and plantings will be provided for that area.
Sheet Flow Dispersion (BMP T5.12)	Not evaluated – Bioretention will be utilized

Lawn & Landscaped Areas:			
Post-Construction Soil	Feasible - The existing duff layer will be stripped and stockpiled		
Quality and Depth	on-site, and replaced to the greatest possible extent prior to final		
(BMP T5.13)	stabilization of the project.		

There are also two existing buildings on-site that are expected to remain. Roof runoff from those two structures will be managed through the use of infiltration trenches behind each of the respective buildings.

8. RUNOFF TREATMENT

Volume V, Chapter 2 of the SWMMWW provides a step-by-step selection process for determining the required level of treatment for the project site. That step-by-step process is provided below:

• Step 1 – Determine the receiving waters and pollutants of concern.

From the City of Marysville's GIS drainage inventory, it appears that the downstream flowpath is ultimately tributary to Allen Creek, roughly 1-mile downstream of the site. The WA State Dept. of Ecology's Water Quality Atlas identifies a bacteria issue within Allen Creek in the vicinity where the downstream flowpath is tributary. The Dept. of Ecology has issued a TMDL implementation plan for fecal coliform bacteria in the Lower Snohomish River Tributaries, which includes this portion of Allen Creek. It generally indicates two primary sources of contamination as agricultural runoff from the upper portions of the basin, and urban surface runoff. This project site intends to utilize infiltration for flow control and treatment and is only expected to discharge surface runoff during overflow events for which treatment is not required. There is no specific treatment requirement for urban runoff specified in the TMDL implementation plan.

• Step 2 – Determine if an oil control facility/device is required.

Oil control is required when a site has "high-use" characteristics, such as a commercial/industrial area, heavy vehicle storage, or arterial roadways with a high traffic count. This project does not meet the high-use criteria, so oil control is not required.

• <u>Step 3 – Determine if infiltration for pollutant removal is practicable.</u>

The project is underlain by an outwash soil unit, and the geotechnical report suggests it has sufficient capacity for infiltration and meets the soil suitability criteria for treatment. With this in mind, the project intends to utilize a combination of bioretention and infiltration to satisfy the water quality treatment requirements.

• <u>Step 4 – Determine if control of phosphorus is required.</u>

The project is ultimately tributary to Allen Creek, which has a TMDL implementation plan for fecal coliform, but no specific direction to implement phosphorus control.

• <u>Step 5 – Determine if enhanced treatment is required.</u>

The project is not required to provide enhanced treatment if it is subject to 'basic' flow control requirements as stipulated in Step 6 (see below). This project meets the requirements outlined in Step 6, so enhanced treatment is not required.

• <u>Step 6 – Select a basic treatment facility.</u>

The Ray Townhomes project is a residential project not otherwise needing phosphorus control, and therefore, is subject to the 'basic' treatment requirements outlined in Step 6. Most site runoff will be conveyed to a bioretention cell, which is approved by the WA State Dept. of Ecology for both 'basic' and 'enhanced' treatment. The remainder of the site runoff will be conveyed to a separate shallow infiltration pond. The geotechnical report indicates that the underlying soil satisfies the soil suitability criteria for stormwater treatment. The project intends to provide 3-ft (minimum) separation between the bottom of the facility and seasonal-high groundwater level. Groundwater elevations are currently being monitored. If it is confirmed at the anticipated elevation, a mounding

analysis will be performed as part of the final design and submitted to the City along with the construction documents. If the groundwater is found to be more than 5-ft below the bottom of the proposed facilities, the mounding analysis will not be needed.

Water quality treatment design calculations were performed using WWHM2012 hydrologic modeling software and are provided in **Appendix 'D'** & **Appendix 'E'** of this report.

9. FLOW CONTROL

The project is required to satisfy the flow control requirement outlined in Minimum Requirement #7 of the SWMMWW. This involves evaluating the site using a continuous runoff simulation model and verifying that the predeveloped discharge durations match the historic discharge durations for a range of pre-developed discharge rates (50% of 2-yr peak to full 50-yr peak). For this analysis, the historic runoff conditions for the project site are assumed as "forest", to represent the land cover conditions that existed prior to initial settlement of the area.

In the developed condition, the site has been split into two distinct basins. Runoff from most of the site (West Basin) will be collected and conveyed to a bioretention cell for treatment and infiltration. This bioretention cell has been situated at an elevation that provides 3-ft of separation between the bottom of the bioretention cell and the anticipated seasonal-high groundwater elevation. Groundwater elevations will be monitored through the wet-season to verify that sufficient separation is being provided and a mounding analysis is expected to be provided as part of the final design package.

The frontage improvement area and eastern portion of the site (East Basin) have been routed to a separate underground stormwater vault because those areas lie at an elevation that is too low to be conveyed to the bioretention facility. The geotechnical report for the project identified relatively shallow groundwater near the east edge of the site, and a bioretention facility at this location would not be able to achieve the required separation from groundwater. Groundwater elevations will be monitored through the wet-season and if the seasonal-high groundwater elevation is found to be lower than was initially indicated in the geotechnical report, the final design may be adjusted to accommodate more of the site in a bioretention cell.

Existing and developed basin maps are provided in **Appendix** 'C', which tabulate the historic and anticipated land cover conditions. Those tabulated values are used as input for the hydrologic model provided in **Appendices** 'D' & 'E'. The models demonstrate that the proposed facilities meet the flow-control requirement.

10. WETLANDS PROTECTION

As stipulated in Minimum Requirement #8 of the SWMMWW, this requirement applies only to projects whose stormwater discharges into a wetland, either directly or indirectly through a conveyance system. The proposed project is intending to infiltrate runoff near the existing wetland and does not discharge to the neighboring wetland area through a conveyance system. With this in mind, the requirement does not appear to be applicable.

The underlying soil at the project site is an outwash variety, and a vast majority of the rain that currently falls on the site is expected to infiltrate into the underlying soil before discharging as surface runoff. The project is proposing an underground infiltration system adjacent to the wetland, which is likely to contribute groundwater to the adjacent wetland, which is expected to recharge the wetland through groundwater, similar to what is likely to occur currently

11. OPERATION & MAINTENANCE

Operations and maintenance recommendations pertinent to the site have been selected from the SWMMWW and provided on the following pages. The proposed bioretention cell will impound water similar to a stormwater detention pond, so the detention pond recommendations are provided for that facility in addition to the bioretention O&M recommendations.

Maintenance Component	Defect	Conditions When Maintenance Is Needed	Results Expected When Maintenance Is Performed	
General	Trash & Debris	Any trash and debris which exceed 1 cubic feet per 1,000 square feet. In general, there should be no visual evidence of dumping.	Trash and debris cleared from site.	
		If less than threshold all trash and debris will be removed as part of next scheduled maintenance.		
	Poisonous Vegetation and noxious weeds	Any poisonous or nuisance vegetation which may constitute a hazard to maintenance personnel or the public.	No danger of poisonous vegetation where maintenance personnel or the public might normally be. (Coordinate with local health department)	
		Any evidence of noxious weeds as defined by State or local regulations. (Apply requirements of adopted IPM policies for the use of herbicides).	Complete eradication of noxious weeds may not be possible. Compliance with State or local eradication policies required	
	Contaminants and Pollution	Any evidence of oil, gasoline, contaminants or other pollutants (Coordinate removal/cleanup with local water quality response agency).	No contaminants or pollutants present.	
	Rodent Holes	Any evidence of rodent holes if facility is acting as a dam or berm, or any evidence of water piping through dam or berm via rodent holes.	Rodents destroyed and dam or berm repaired. (Coordinate with local health department; coordinate with Ecology Dam Safety Office if pond exceeds 10 acre-feet.)	

No. 1 – Detention Ponds

No. 1 - Detention Ponds

Maintenance Defect Component		Conditions When Maintenance Is Needed Results Expected When Maintenance Is Performed	
	Beaver Dams	Dam results in change or function of the facility.	Facility is returned to design function. (Coordinate trapping of beavers and removal of dams with appropriate permitting agencies)
	Insects	When insects such as wasps and hornets interfere with maintenance activities.	Insects destroyed or removed from site. Apply insecticides in compliance with adopted IPM policies
	Tree Growth and Hazard Trees	Tree growth does not allow maintenance access or interferes with maintenance activity (i.e., slope mowing, silt removal, vactoring, or equipment movements). If trees are not interfering with access or maintenance, do not remove	Trees do not hinder maintenance activities. Harvested trees should be recycled into mulch or other beneficial uses (e.g., alders for firewood). Remove hazard Trees
		If dead, diseased, or dying trees are identified (Use a certified Arborist to determine health of tree or removal	
		requirements)	
Side Slopes of Pond	Erosion	Eroded damage over 2 inches deep where cause of damage is still present or where there is potential for continued erosion.	Slopes should be stabilized using appropriate erosion control measure(s); e.g., rock reinforcement, planting of grass, compaction.
		Any erosion observed on a compacted berm embankment.	If erosion is occurring on compacted berms a licensed civil engineer should be consulted to resolve source of erosion.
Storage Area	Sediment	Accumulated sediment that exceeds 10% of the designed pond depth unless otherwise specified or affects inletting or outletting condition of the facility.	Sediment cleaned out to designed pond shape and depth; pond reseeded if necessary to control erosion.
	Liner (If Applicable)	Liner is visible and has more than three 1/4-inch holes in it.	Liner repaired or replaced. Liner is fully covered.
Pond Berms (Dikes)	Settlements	Any part of berm which has settled 4 inches lower than the design elevation.	Dike is built back to the design elevation.
		If settlement is apparent, measure berm to determine amount of settlement.	
		Settling can be an indication of more severe problems with the berm or outlet works. A licensed civil engineer should be consulted to determine the source of the settlement.	
	Piping	Discernable water flow through pond berm. Ongoing erosion with potential for erosion to continue.	Piping eliminated. Erosion potential resolved.
		(Recommend a Goethechnical engineer be called in to inspect and evaluate condition and recommend repair of condition.	

No. 1 - Detention Ponds

Maintenance Defect Cond Component Need		Conditions When Maintenance Is Needed	Results Expected When Maintenance Is Performed
Emergency Overflow/ Spillway and Berms over 4 feet in height.	Tree Growth	Tree growth on emergency spillways creates blockage problems and may cause failure of the berm due to uncontrolled overtopping. Tree growth on berms over 4 feet in height may lead to piping through the berm which could lead to failure of the berm.	Trees should be removed. If root system is small (base less than 4 inches) the root system may be left in place. Otherwise the roots should be removed and the berm restored. A licensed civil engineer should be consulted for proper berm/spillway restoration.
	Piping	Discernable water flow through pond berm. Ongoing erosion with potential for erosion to continue. (Recommend a Goethechnical engineer be called in to inspect and evaluate condition and recommend repair of condition.	Piping eliminated. Erosion potential resolved.
Emergency Overflow/ Spillway	Emergency Overflow/ Spillway	Only one layer of rock exists above native soil in area five square feet or larger, or any exposure of native soil at the top of out flow path of spillway. (Rip-rap on inside slopes need not be replaced.)	Rocks and pad depth are restored to design standards.
	Erosion	See "Side Slopes of Pond"	

No. 2 - Infiltration

Maintenance Component	Defect	Conditions When Maintenance Is Needed	Results Expected When Maintenance Is Performed
General	Trash & Debris	See "Detention Ponds" (No. 1).	See "Detention Ponds" (No. 1).
	Poisonous/Noxious Vegetation	See "Detention Ponds" (No. 1).	See "Detention Ponds" (No. 1).
	Contaminants and Pollution	See "Detention Ponds" (No. 1).	See "Detention Ponds" (No. 1).
	Rodent Holes	See "Detention Ponds" (No. 1).	See "Detention Ponds" (No. 1)
Storage Area	Sediment	Water ponding in infiltration pond after rainfall ceases and appropriate time allowed for infiltration. Treatment basins should infiltrate Water Quality Design Storm Volume within 48 hours, and empty within 24 hours after cessation of most rain events. (A percolation test pit or test of facility indicates facility is only working at 90% of its designed capabilities. Test every 2 to 5 years. If two inches or more sediment is present, remove).	Sediment is removed and/or facility is cleaned so that infiltration system works according to design.
Filter Bags (if applicable)	Filled with Sediment and Debris	Sediment and debris fill bag more than 1/2 full.	Filter bag is replaced or system is redesigned.
Rock Filters	Sediment and Debris	By visual inspection, little or no water flows through filter during heavy rain storms.	Gravel in rock filter is replaced.
Side Slopes of Pond	Erosion	See "Detention Ponds" (No. 1).	See "Detention Ponds" (No. 1).
Emergency Overflow Spillway and Berms over 4 feet in height.	Tree Growth	See "Detention Ponds" (No. 1).	See "Detention Ponds" (No. 1).
	Piping	See "Detention Ponds" (No. 1).	See "Detention Ponds" (No. 1).
Emergency Overflow Spillway	Rock Missing	See "Detention Ponds" (No. 1).	See "Detention Ponds" (No. 1).
	Erosion	See "Detention Ponds" (No. 1).	See "Detention Ponds" (No. 1).
Pre-settling Ponds and Vaults	Facility or sump filled with Sediment and/or debris	6" or designed sediment trap depth of sediment.	Sediment is removed.

No. 5 - Catch Basins

Maintenance Component	Defect	Conditions When Maintenance is Needed	Results Expected When Maintenance is performed
General	Trash & Debris	Trash or debris which is located immediately in front of the catch basin opening or is blocking inletting capacity of the basin by more than 10%.	No Trash or debris located immediately in front of catch basin or on grate opening.
		Trash or debris (in the basin) that exceeds 60 percent of the sump depth as measured from the bottom of basin to invert of the lowest pipe into or out of the basin, but in no case less than a minimum of six inches clearance from the debris surface to the invert of the lowest pipe.	No trash or debris in the catch basin.
		Trash or debris in any inlet or outlet pipe blocking more than 1/3 of its height.	Inlet and outlet pipes free of trash or debris.
		Dead animals or vegetation that could generate odors that could cause complaints or dangerous gases (e.g., methane).	No dead animals or vegetation present within the catch basin.
	Sediment	Sediment (in the basin) that exceeds 60 percent of the sump depth as measured from the bottom of basin to invert of the lowest pipe into or out of the basin, but in no case less than a minimum of 6 inches clearance from the sediment surface to the invert of the lowest pipe.	No sediment in the catch basin
	Structure Damage to Frame and/or Top Slab	Top slab has holes larger than 2 square inches or cracks wider than 1/4 inch (Intent is to make sure no material is running into basin).	Top slab is free of holes and cracks.
		Frame not sitting flush on top slab, i.e., separation of more than 3/4 inch of the frame from the top slab. Frame not securely attached	Frame is sitting flush on the riser rings or top slab and firmly attached.
	Fractures or Cracks in Basin Walls/ Bottom	Maintenance person judges that structure is unsound.	Basin replaced or repaired to design standards.
		Grout fillet has separated or cracked wider than 1/2 inch and longer than 1 foot at the joint of any inlet/outlet pipe or any evidence of soil particles entering catch basin through cracks.	Pipe is regrouted and secure at basin wall.
	Settlement/ Misalignment	If failure of basin has created a safety, function, or design problem.	Basin replaced or repaired to design standards.
	Vegetation	Vegetation growing across and blocking more than 10% of the basin opening.	No vegetation blocking opening to basin.
		Vegetation growing in inlet/outlet pipe joints that is more than six inches tall and less than six inches apart.	No vegetation or root growth present.
	Contamination and Pollution	See "Detention Ponds" (No. 1).	No pollution present.

No. 5 - Catch Basins

Maintenance Component	Defect	Conditions When Maintenance is Needed	Results Expected When Maintenance is performed
Catch Basin Cover	Cover Not in Place	Cover is missing or only partially in place. Any open catch basin requires maintenance.	Catch basin cover is closed
	Locking Mechanism Not Working	Mechanism cannot be opened by one maintenance person with proper tools. Bolts into frame have less than 1/2 inch of thread.	Mechanism opens with proper tools.
	Cover Difficult to Remove	One maintenance person cannot remove lid after applying normal lifting pressure. (Intent is keep cover from sealing off access to maintenance.)	Cover can be removed by one maintenance person.
Ladder	Ladder Rungs Unsafe	Ladder is unsafe due to missing rungs, not securely attached to basin wall, misalignment, rust, cracks, or sharp edges.	Ladder meets design standards and allows maintenance person safe access.
Metal Grates (If Applicable)	Grate opening Unsafe	Grate with opening wider than 7/8 inch.	Grate opening meets design standards.
	Trash and Debris	Trash and debris that is blocking more than 20% of grate surface inletting capacity.	Grate free of trash and debris.
	Damaged or Missing.	Grate missing or broken member(s) of the grate.	Grate is in place and meets design standards.

No. 6 - Debris Barriers (e.g., Trash Racks)

Maintenance Components	Defect	Condition When Maintenance is Needed	Results Expected When Maintenance is Performed
General	Trash and Debris	Trash or debris that is plugging more than 20% of the openings in the barrier.	Barrier cleared to design flow capacity.
Metal	Damaged/ Missing Bars.	Bars are bent out of shape more than 3 inches.	Bars in place with no bends more than 3/4 inch.
		Bars are missing or entire barrier missing.	Bars in place according to design.
		Bars are loose and rust is causing 50% deterioration to any part of barrier.	Barrier replaced or repaired to design standards.
	Inlet/Outlet Pipe	Debris barrier missing or not attached to pipe	Barrier firmly attached to pipe

Note that the inspection and routine maintenance frequencies listed below are recommended by Ecology. They do not supersede or replace the municipal stormwater permit requirements for inspection frequency required of municipal stormwater permittees for "stormwater treatment and flow control BMPs/facilities."

Maintenance	Recomme	nded Frequency a	Condition when Maintenance is Needed	Action Needed
Component	Inspection	Routine Maintenance	(Standards)	(Procedures)
Facility Footprint				
Earthen side slopes and berms	ю a		Erosion (guilies/ rills) greater than 2 inches deep around inlets, outlet, and alongside stopes	• Eliminate cause of erosion and stabilize damaged area (regrade, rock, vepetation, erosion control matting) per root deep formetis or curst (over 8 inches in ponding depth), temporary erosion control measures should be put in place until permanent repairs can be made. Properity designed, constructed and established facilities with appropriate flow velocities should not have erosion problems eccept perhaps in extreme events. If erosion problems periods, the following should be reassessed: (1) flow volumes from contributing areas and bioterenticol fracting sciency. (5) flow velocities and gradients within the facility; and (3) flow dissipation and erosion protection strategies at the facility inlet.
	¥		Erosion of sides causes slope to become a hazard	Take actions to eliminate the hazard and stabilize slopes
	s.A		Settlement greater than 3 inches (relative to undisturbed sections of berm)	Restore to design height
	A.S		Downstream face of berm wet, seeps or leaks evident	Plug any holes and compact berm (may require consultation with engineer, particularly for larger berms)
	¥		Any evidence of rodent holes or water piping in berm	 Eradicate rodents (see "Pest control") Fill holes and compact (may require consultation with engineer, particularly for larger berms)
Concrete sidewalls	۲		Cracks or failure of concrete sidewalls	 Repair/ seal cracks Replace if repair is insufficient
Rockery sidewalls	A		Rockery side walls are insecure	Stabilize rockery sidewalls (may require consultation with engineer, particularly for walls 4 feet or greater in height)
Facility area		All maintenance visits (at least biannually)	Trash and debris present	Clean out trash and debris
Facility bottom area	vo "≼		Accumulated sediment to extent that infiltration rate is reduced (see "Ponded water") or surface storage capacity significantly impacted	 Remove excess sediment Replace any vegetation damaged or destroyed by sediment accumulation and removal Mulch newly planted vegetation Mulch newly planted vegetation Identify and control the sediment source (if feasible) Identify and control the sediment source (if feasible) If accumulated sediment is recurrent, consider adding presettement or installing berms to create a forebay at the inlet
		During/after fall leaf drop	Accumulated leaves in facility	Remove leaves if there is a risk to clogging outlet structure or water flow is impeded
Low permeability check dams and weirs	A.S		Sediment, vegetation, or debris accumulated at or blocking (or having the potential to block) check dam, flow control weir or orifice	Clear the blockage
	A. S		Erosion and/or undercutting present	Repair and take preventative measures to prevent future erosion and/or underoutting
	A		Grade board or top of weir damaged or not level	Restore to level position

intenance visit should occur in the early fall, after deciduous a Frequency: A = Annually, B = Biannually (twice per year); M = Monthly; W = At least one visit should occur during the wet sesson (for debris/clog related maintenance, this inspect) trees have lost their leaves); 5 = Perform inspections after major storm events (2+hour storm event with a 10-year or greater recurrence interval).

IPM - Integrated Pest Management ISA - International Society of Arboriculture

Action Needed	(Procedures)		facility is not impeding infiltration. If necessary, remove leaf litter/debris. Lif Recessary, clear underdrain. Lif necessary, clear underdrain. econtributing area. Confirm that the contributing area has not increas ed. econtributing area. Confirm that the contributing area has not increas ed. econtributing area. Confirm that the contributing area has not increas ed. econtributing area. Confirm that the contributing area has not increas ed. econtributing area. Confirm that the contributing area has not increas ed. econtributing area. Confirm that the contributing area has not increas ed. econtributing area. Confirm that the contributing area has not increas ed. econtributing area. Confirm that the contributing area has not increas ed. econtributing area. Confirm that the contributing area has not increas ed. econtributing area. Confirm that the contributing area has not increas ed. econtributing area. Confirm that the contributing area has not increas ed. econtributing area. Confirm that the contributing area has not increas ed. econtributing area. Confirm that the contributing area has not increas ed. econtributing area. Confirm that the contributing area has not increas ed. econtributing area. Confirm that the contributing area has not increas ed. econtributing area (e.g., tilled). Consultation with an engineer is recommended. econtributing area for the contribution with an engineer is recommended.	Mo and other loads) to the degree feasible in order to prevent compaction ally foctorint. aturated soil conditions, any type of loading in the cell (including foot traffic) of traffic is required or equipment must be placed in facility. As an use loads and minimize compaction.		ind away from structure	d low points along long. linear facilities)			is to prevent future blockages	d low points along long. linear facilities)	lible) within 1 foot of inlets and outlets, maintain access pathways iended for removal, transplant, or substitution of plants	protection measure (e.g., matting) to protect the ground where urb cut or swale)
			Defermine cause and resolve in the following order: 1) Confirm leaf or other buildup in the bottom of the 2) Ensure that underdrain (if present) is not dogged 3) Check for other water inputs (e.groundwater.) 4) Verity that the facility is sized appropriately for the If steps #1-40 not solve the problem, the bioreenth become overly compacted. Dig a small hole to obser determine the soil depth to be removed or otherwise determine the soil depth to be removed or otherwise	 Minimize all loading in the facility footprint (fbot tra of bioretension solid Never forwe exumment or apoly heavy loads in fac Never forwe exumment or apoly heavy loading is should be minimized ulting wet comfisions. Because the risk of compaction is highly theavy fo example, boards may be placed across soil to distrib example, boards must be loosened or oth if compaction occurs, soil must be loosened or oth 		Reconfigure/ repair blocks to direct water to facility a	Clear leaves (partioularly important for key inlets and	Repair/ replace	Remove roots or debris	 Clear the blockage Identify the source of the blockage and take action 	Clear leaves (particularly important for key inlets and	Clear vegetation (transplant vegetation when poss Consultation with a landscape architect is recomm	Maintain a cover of rock or cobbles or other erosion concentrated water enters the facility (e.g., a pipe, cu
Condition when Maintenance is Needed	(Standards)		Excessive ponding water: Water overflows during stoms smaller than the design event or ponded water remains in the basin 48 hours or longer after the end of a storm.	Bioretention soil media protection is needed when performing maintenance requiring entrance into the facility footprint.		Water is not being directed properly to the facility and away from the inlet structure	Accumulated leaves at curb cuts	Pipe is damaged	Pipe is clogged	Sediment, debris, trash, or mulch reducing capacity of inlet/outlet	Accumulated leaves at inlets/outlets	Maintain access for inspections	Concentrated flows are causing erosion
ded Frequency a	Routine Maintenance						Weekly during fall leaf drop				Weekly during fall leaf drop	٩	
Recommen	Inspection	t'd)	ທ ໝໍ	As needed		×	M during the wet season and before severe storm is forecasted	¥	M	ິ ¥			4
Maintenance	Component	Facility Footprint (com	Ponded water	Bioretention soil media	Inlets/Outlets/Pipes	Splash block inlet	Curb out inletioutlet	Pipe inlet/outlet					Erosion control at inlet

	Recommen	nded Frequency a		
Component	Inspection	Routine Maintenance	Condition when maintenance is Needed (Standards)	Action meeoed (Procedures)
Inlets/Outlets/Pipes (c	ont'd)			
Trash rack	S		Trash or other debris present on trash rack	Remove/dispose
	¥		Bar screen damaged or missing	Repairfreplace
Overflow	A.S		Capacity reduced by sediment or debris	Remove sediment or debris/dispose
Underdrain pipe	Clean pipe as needed	Clean orifice at least biannually (may need more frequent cleaning during wet season)	 Plant roots, sediment or debris reducing capacity of underdrain Proionged surface ponding (see "Ponded water") 	 Jet clean or rotary cut debris/roots from underdrain(s) If underdrains are equipped with a flow restrictor (e.g., orifice) to attenuate flows, the orifice must be cleaned regularly.
Vegetation				
Facility bottom area and upland slope vegetation	Fall and Spring		Vegetation survival rate fails below 75% within first two years of establishment (unless project C&M manual or record drawing stipulates more or less than 75% survival rate).	 Determine cause of poor vegetation growth and correct condition Replants are researant to obtain 75% survival rate or greater. Relet to original planting plan, or approved jurisdictional species list for approvide plant replacements (See Appendix 3 - Bioretention Plant List, in the LID Technical Guidance Manual for Puget Sound). Confirm that plant selection is appropriate for site growing conditions. Consultation with a landscape architect is recommended for removal, transplant, or substitution of plants
Vegetation (general)	As needed		Presence of diseased plants and plant material	 Remove any diseased plants or plant parts and dispose of in an approved location (e.g., commercial landfill) to avoid risk of spreading the disease of other plants Disinfect gardening tools after plants See Pacific Northwest Plant Disease Management Handbook for information on disease recognition and for additional resources Replant as necessary according to recommendations provided for "facility bottom area and upland slope vegetation".
Trees and shrubs		All pruning seasons (timing varies by species)	Pruning as needed	 Prune trees and shrubs in a manner appropriate for each species. Pruning should be performed by landscape professionals familiar with proper pruning techniques All pruning of mature trees should be performed by or under the direct guidance of an ISA certified arborist
	<		Large trees and shrubs interfere with operation of the facility or access for maintenance	 Prune trees and shrubs using most ourrent ANSI A300 standards and ISA BMPs. Remove trees and shrubs. If necessary.
	Fall and Spring		Standing dead vegetation is present	 Remove standing dead vegetation Replace dead vegetation within 30 days of reported dead and dying plants (as practical depending on weather/planting season) If vegetation replacement is not feasible within 30 days, and absence of vegetation may result in erosion problems, If vegetation replacement is not feasible within 30 days, and absence of vegetation may result in erosion problems, If vegetation course of dead vegetation and address itsue, if possible If second control reasons should be put in place immediately. Determine course of dead vegetation and address itsue, if possible If second control of advectores the cause and replace with appropriate species. Consultation with a landscape architect is recommended.
	Fall and Spring		Planting beneath mature trees	 When working around and below mature trees, follow the most current ANSI A300 standards and ISA BMPs to the extent practicular (e.g., take care to minimize any damage to the roots any obvio compaction of soil, standards and ISA BMPs to the extent manity takes. Planting of small shrubs or groundcovers pleneable to there roots any be desirable in some cases; such plantings should use many takes that

Maintenance Component	Recomme	nded Frequency = Routine	Condition when Maintenance is Needed (Standards)	Action Needed Procedures
		Maintenance		
Vegetation (cont'd)				
Trees and shrubs (confd)	Fall and Spring		Planting beneath mature trees	 When working around and below mature trees, follow the most ourrent ANSI A300 standards and ISA BMPs to the extent practicuole og. take care to minimize any damage to the ere tools and avoid compated of soil. Planning of small styles or groundworks beneating may be desirable in some cases; such blannings should use mainly plants that come as bulbs, bare root or in 4-inch pols; plants should be in no larger than 1-gallon containers.
	Fall and Spring		Presence of or need for stakes and guys (tree growth, maturation, and support needs)	 Verify location of facility liners and underdrain (if any) prior to stake installation in order to prevent liner puncture or pipe damage Monitor the support systems: Repair and adjust as needed to provide support and prevent damage to tree. Remove tree supports (stakes, guys, etc.) after one growing season or maximum of 1 year. Backfill stake holes after removal.
Trees and shrubs adjacent to vehicle travel areas (or areas where visibility needs to be maintained)	۲		Vegetation causes some visibility (line of sight) or driver safety issues	 Maintain appropriate height for sight clearance When controled, regular pruning increases the growing season) is required to maintain visual sight lines for safety or detarance and one than one than one than one than one than one clearance and a wather decoding the plant to a more appropriate location. Remove or transplant if continual safety hazard Remove or transplant if continual safety hazard Consultation with a landscape architect is recommended for removal, transplant, or substitution of plants
Flowering plants		۲	Dead or spent flowers present	Remove spent flowers (deadhead)
Perennials		Fall	Spent plants	Cut back dying or dead and failen foliage and stems
Emergent vegetation		Spring	Vegetation compromises conveyance	 Hand rake sedges and rushes with a small rake or fingers to remove dead foilage before new growth emerges in spring or earlier only if the foilage is blocking water flow (sedges and rushes do not respond well to pruning)
Ornamental grasses (perennial)		Winter and Spring	Dead material from previous year's growing cycle or dead collapsed follage	 Leave dry follage for winter interest. Hand take with a small rake or fingers to remove dead follage back to within several inches from the soil before new growth entergas in spring or earlier if the follage collapses and is blocking water flow.
Omamental grasses (evergreen)		Fall and Spring	Dead growth present in spring	 Hand take with a small rake or fingers to remove dead growth before new growth emerges in spring Clean, rake, and comb grasses when they become too tail Clean, rake, and cort thin every 2-3 years as needed
Noxious weeds		M (March – October, preceding seed dispersal)	Listed noxious vegetation is present (refer to ourrent county noxious veed list)	 EV law, lass A & B noxicus weeds must be removed, bagged and disposed as garbage immediately Reasonable attempts must be made to remove and dispose of class C noxicus weeds. It is strongly encourage that inferioides and pasticides not be used in order to protect water quality, use of herbicides and pasticides and be strongly encourage that inferioides and pasticides and pasticides not be used in order to protect water quality, use of herbicides and pasticides much pasticides not be used in order to protect water quality, use of herbicides and pasticides much pasticides not be used in order to protect water quality, use of herbicides and pasticides much pasticides and pasticides much particides and pasticides and pasticides

• Frequency: A = Annualty; B = Biannualty (twice per year); M = Monthly; W = At least one visit should occur during the wet sesson (for debris/clog related maintenance, this inspection/maintenance visit should occur in the early fall, after deciduous trees have lost their leaves); S = Perform inspections after major storm events (24-hour storm event with a 10-year or greater recurrence interval).
IPM = Integrated Pest Management
ISA = International Society of Arboriculture

Maintenance Component	Recomme Inspection	nded Frequency = Routine	Condition when Maintenance is Needed (Standards)	Action Needed (Procedures)
Vegetation (cont'd)				
Weeds		M (March – October, preceding seed dispersal)	Weeds are present	 Remove weeds with their roots manually with pinoer-type weeding tools, flame weeders, or hot water weeders as aptrovieties aptroprotocols for weed management (see "Additional Maintenance Resources" section for more information on IPM pirotocols)
Excessive vegetation		Once in early to mid- May and once in early- to mid- September	Low-tying wepetation provide both betwend both welde onto sidewalks, paths, or street edge posses pedestrian safety hazard or may olog adjovent permeable pavement surfaces due to associated lear littler, much, and soil	 Edge or trim groundcovers and shrubs at fability edge Avoid mechanical bilade-type edger and do not use edger or trimmer within 2 feet of tree trunks Avoid mechanical bilade-type edger and do not use edger or trimmer within 2 feet of tree trunks Solution compared to the transfer of the transfer of the solution of
	As needed		Excessive vegetation density inhibits stormwater flow beyond design ponding or becomes a hazard for pedestrian and vehicular circulation and safety	 Determine whether pruning or other routine maintenance is adequate to maintain proper plant density and avesthetics Determine if planting types should be reploced to avoid ongoing minimanore issues (an appressive grower under perfect growing conditions should be transplanted to a location where it, mainteance issues (an appressive grower under perfect growing conditions should be transplanted to a location where it, mainteance is adequate tow) Remove plants that are weak, locker on true to form, replace in-blind Thin grass or plants imposing fooling function whitevut leaving visual holes or bare soil areas Consultation with a landscape architect is recommended for removal, transplant, or substitution of plants
	As needed		Vegetation blocking curb cuts, causing excessive sediment buildup and flow bypass	Remove vegetation and sediment buildup
Mulch				
Mulch		Fallowing weeding	Bare soots (without muloh cover) are present or muloh depth less than 2 inches	 Supplement mulch with hand tools to a depth of 2 to 3 inches Replainth mulch with hand tools to a depth of 2 to 3 inches Resterinth mulch analy. Other oxarse compost is used in the bottom of the facility and arborist wood chips are a section stoke start favels) Keep all mulch away from woody stems
Watering				
Irrigation system (if any)		Based on manufacturer's instructions	Irrigation system present	 Follow manufacturer's instructions for O&M
	¥		Sprinklers or drip irrigation not directed/located to properly water plants	 Redirect sprinklers or move drip irrigation to desired areas
Summer watering (first year)		Once every 1-2 weeks or as needed during preioose dry perioos	Trees, shrubs and proundoowers in first year of establishment period	• 10 to 15 gallons per tree • 3 to 5 gallons water per sequare foot for groundcover areas • 3 to 5 gallons water per sequare foot for groundcover areas • Water deeply, but infrequently, so that the top 6 to 12 inches of the root zone is molist • Use soaker hores or spot water with a shower type wand when inrigation system is not present • Use soaker hores or spot water with a shower type wand when inrigation system is not present • Use soaker hore soil approprion, when feasible • Plate water to entance soil approprion, and allows more water to infittrate prori to runoff • Add a tree bag or slow-release soil absorption and allows more water to infittrate prori to runoff when irrigation system is not present.
a Frequency: A = Annu	ally; B = Biannua	Ily (twice per year); M =	= Monthly; W = At least one visit should occur during the wet :	eason (for debris/clog related maintenance, this inspection/maintenance visit should occur in the early fall, after deciduous

interval). ecurrence greater a oc trees have lost their leaves); S = Perform in IPM - Integrated Pest Management ISA - International Society of Arboriculture

Maintenance Component Watering (cont/d) Summer watering years) Summer watering (after establishment)	Recommination	As needed frequency a maintenance Maintenance Once every 2-4 during prolonged dry periods As needed As needed	Condition when Maintenance is Needed (Standards) Trees. shubs and groundoovers in second or third year of establishment period Established vegetation (after 3 years)	Action Needed (Proceedures) 10 to 15 gallons per tree 3 to 5 gallons per shrub Water deepty, to thirthermotion of the providover areas 9 user shrub 9 to 5 gallons per shrub 9 to 5 gallons per shrub 9 to 5 gallons water boot for groundover areas 9 to 5 gallons water boot for groundover areas 9 to 10 thirthermotion and allows of the root zone is moist 9 to 2 to pass or spot water with a shower type wand when irrigation system is not present 9 to 2 to pass or spot water with a shower type wand when irrigation system is not present 9 to Pre-mosten soil absorption, when Raballo 9 Pre-mosten soil bioreak stable 9 Pre-mosten stable 9 Pre-mosten stable <td< th=""></td<>
Pest Control Mosquitoes	ဟ ဆိ		Standing water remains for more than 3 days after the end	Immediately after initial signs of stress appear • Water during drought conditions or more often if necessary to maintain plant cover • Identify the cause of the standing water and take appropriate actions to address the problem (see "Fonded water")
			of a storm	To facilitate marken or we namolary server a sproprime exocute as we are concertaints or force action or the standard marken and a monally remove standing waker and direct to the storm drainage system (if rund'is from or pollution-generating surfaces) or sanitary server system (if rund'is from pollution-generating surfaces) after getting approximate a standard server system (if rund'is from or thom sanitary seave subtority. If united the server system (if rund'is from pollution-generating surfaces) after getting approximation satisfrage system (if rund'is from or Use of pesticides or Bacilitor thrinningientia izraelenaie (Bit)may be considered only as a temporary measure while addre the standing water action. The or surface water will occur within 2 weeks after pesticide use, apply for covenage the Aquatio Masterial Control (PDES) General Permit.
Nuisance animals	As needed		Nurisance animais causing erosion, damaging plants, or depositing large volumes of feces	 Reduce site conditions that attract nuisance species where possible (e.g., plant shrubs and tail grasses to reduce open wases for geese. end Place preditor decoys Follow PM protocols for specific nuisance animal issues (see "Additional Maintenance Resources" section for more information on IPM protocols for specific nuisance animal issues (see "Additional Maintenance Resources" section for more Remove pet waste regularly Remove pet waste regularly
Insect pests	Every site visit associated with vegetation management		Sicns of pasts, such as witting leaves, chewed leaves and bark, spotting or other indicators	 Reduce hicing places for pests by removing diseased and dead plants For infestations, follow IPM protocols (see "Additional Maintenance Resources" section for more information on IPM protocols)
a Frequency: A = Ann.	ually; 8 = Biannu	ally (twice per year); M =	= Monthly; W = At least one visit should occur during the wet	reacon (for debris/clos related maintenance, this inspection/maintenance visit should occur in the early fall, a

with a 10-year or greater recurrence interval). went storm storm events (24-hour Frequency: A = Annually (1: 5 = Elannually (twice per year); M = M, trees have fort their leaver); S = Perform inspections after major.
 Integrated Pert Management.
 International Society of Arboriculture

Ray Townhomes Marysville, WA

APPENDIX A Resource Review Documents



September 24, 2019







Sources: Esri, HERE, Garmin, Intermap, increment P Corp., GEBCO, USGS, FAO, NPS, NRCAN, GeoBase, IGN, Kadaster NL, Ordnance Survey, Esri Japan, METI, Esri China (Hong Kong), (c) OpenStreetMap contributors, and

Ray Townhomes Marysville, WA

APPENDIX B Study Area Evaluation





Photo #1 Looking south toward site along 55th Ave NE



Photo #2 Looking south along 55th Ave NE at project frontage



Photo #3 Looking south along 55th Ave NE south of project site



Photo #4 Looking south along 55th Ave NE south of project site



Photo #5 Looking south along 55th Ave NE south of project site



Photo #6 Looking south along 55th Ave NE south of project site



Photo #7 Looking south along 55th Ave NE south of project site

Ray Townhomes Marysville, WA

APPENDIX C Basin Mapping



EXISTING BASIN

KenM

Last Saved By:

4:10PM

2020

TRIBUTARY PAVEMENT AREA = (SUBGRADE TO REMAIN UNDISTURBED)	0.05 AC
REMAINING BASIN AREA = (ASSUME FULLY FORESTED)	2.61 AC
TOTAL BASIN AREA =	2.66 AC







WEST BASIN

IMPERVIOUS LOT AREA = (70% COVERAGE PER MMC 22C.010.080)	0.85 AC
IMPERVIOUS ROAD/TRACT AREA = (INCL. PVMT/WALK/ACCESS ROADS)	0.64 AC
TOTAL IMPERVIOUS AREA =	1.49 AC
LANDSCAPE/LAWN AREA =	0.76 AC
TOTAL BASIN AREA =	2.25 AC

EAST BASIN

IMPERVIOUS ROAD/TRACT AREA = (INCL. PVMT/WALK/ACCESS ROADS)	0.26 AC
LANDSCAPE/LAWN AREA =	0.15 AC
TOTAL BASIN AREA =	0.41 AC

LOT 22 ROOF DOWNSPOUT TRENCH

LOT 22 ROOF AREA	1937 SF
MIN. REQ'D TRENCH LENGTH	58 LF

PER BMP T5.10A: 30LF PER 1,000 SQ.FT TRIBUTARY ROOF AREA (ASSUME MEDIUM SANDS)

LOT 23 ROOF DOWNSPOUT TRENCH

LOT 23 ROOF AREA	980 \$	SF
MIN. REQ'D TRENCH LENGTH	29 l	LF
PER BMP T5.10A: 30LF PER 1,000 SQ.FT TRIBUTARY ROOF AREA		

(ASSUME MEDIUM SANDS)



RAY TOWNHOMES

DEVELOPED BASIN MAP

Sheet:

Ray Townhomes Marysville, WA

APPENDIX D
West Basin Modeling Calculations

BIORETENTION POND DESIGN CALCULATIONS (WEST BASIN)

WWHM2012 PROJECT REPORT

Project Name: 2020-04-14 Ray West Site Name: Ray Townhomes Site Address: City : Marysville **Report Date:** 4/15/2020 Gage : Everett Data Start : 1948/10/01 Data End : 2009/09/30 Precip Scale: 1.20 Version Date: 2018/10/10 **Version :** 4.2.16 Low Flow Threshold for POC 1 : 50 Percent of the 2 Year High Flow Threshold for POC 1: 50 year PREDEVELOPED LAND USE Name : West Basin Bypass: No GroundWater: No Pervious Land Use acre A B, Forest, Flat 2.25 Pervious Total 2.25 Impervious Land Use acre Impervious Total 0 Basin Total 2.25 Element Flows To: Surface Interflow Groundwater MITIGATED LAND USE Name : West Basin Bypass: No GroundWater: No Pervious Land Use acre .76 A B, Lawn, Flat Pervious Total 0.76

Impervious Land Use	acre
ROADS FLAT	1.49
Impervious Total	1.49
Basin Total	2.25

Basin Total

Element Flows To: Surface Interflow Groundwater Surface retention 1 Surface retention 1

Name : Bioretention 1 Bottom Length: 100.00 ft. Bottom Width: 24.00 ft. Material thickness of first layer: 0.25 Material type for first layer: ASTM 100 Material thickness of second layer: 1.5 Material type for second layer: SMMWW 12 in/hr Material thickness of third layer: 0 Material type for third layer: GRAVEL Infiltration On Infiltration rate: 6.9 Infiltration safety factor: 1 Total Volume Infiltrated (ac-ft.): 295.561 Total Volume Through Riser (ac-ft.): 0 Total Volume Through Facility (ac-ft.): 295.561 Percent Infiltrated: 100 Total Precip Applied to Facility: 12.76 Total Evap From Facility: 6.489 Underdrain not used

Discharge Structure Riser Height: 1 ft. Riser Diameter: 12 in.

Element Flows To: Outlet 1 Outlet 2

	Bioretentie	on 1 Hyd	draulic Table		
Stage(fe	et) Area(ac.)	Volume	(ac-ft.) Dischar	ge(cfs)	Infilt(cfs)
73.000	0.0875	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	
73.036	0.0868	0.0010	0.0000	0.0000	
73.071	0.0861	0.0020	0.0000	0.0000	
73.107	0.0854	0.0030	0.0000	0.0005	
73.143	0.0847	0.0041	0.0000	0.0011	
73.179	0.0840	0.0051	0.0000	0.0021	
73.214	0.0833	0.0062	0.0000	0.0036	
73.250	0.0826	0.0072	0.0000	0.0055	
73.286	0.0819	0.0082	0.0000	0.0080	
73.321	0.0812	0.0092	0.0000	0.0110	
73.357	0.0805	0.0102	0.0000	0.0147	
73.393	0.0798	0.0112	0.0000	0.0190	
73.429	0.0791	0.0122	0.0000	0.0240	
73.464	0.0784	0.0132	0.0000	0.0298	
73.500	0.0777	0.0143	0.0000	0.0363	
73.536	0.0771	0.0153	0.0000	0.0435	
73.571	0.0764	0.0164	0.0000	0.0516	
73.607	0.0757	0.0174	0.0000	0.0602	
73.643	0.0750	0.0185	0.0000	0.0606	
73.679	0.0743	0.0196	0.0000	0.0704	
73.714	0.0737	0.0207	0.0000	0.0811	

73.750	0.0730	0.0218	0.0000	0.0927
73.786	0.0723	0.0230	0.0000	0.1053
73.821	0.0717	0.0241	0.0000	0.1189
73.857	0.0710	0.0252	0.0000	0.1335
73.893	0.0703	0.0264	0.0000	0.1490
73.929	0.0697	0.0275	0.0000	0.1657
73.964	0.0690	0.0287	0.0000	0.1834
74.000	0.0684	0.0299	0.0000	0.2022
74.036	0.0677	0.0311	0.0000	0.2221
74.071	0.0671	0.0323	0.0000	0.2431
74.107	0.0664	0.0335	0.0000	0.2653
74.143	0.0658	0.0348	0.0000	0.2779
74.179	0.0651	0.0360	0.0000	0.2887
74.214	0.0645	0.0373	0.0000	0.3132
74.250	0.0638	0.0385	0.0000	0.3390
74.286	0.0632	0.0398	0.0000	0.3660
74.321	0.0626	0.0411	0.0000	0.3833
74.357	0.0619	0.0424	0.0000	0.3833
74.393	0.0613	0.0437	0.0000	0.3833
74.429	0.0607	0.0450	0.0000	0.3833
74.464	0.0600	0.0463	0.0000	0.3833
74.500	0.0594	0.0477	0.0000	0.3833
74.536	0.0588	0.0490	0.0000	0.3833
74.571	0.0582	0.0504	0.0000	0.3833
74.607	0.0576	0.0518	0.0000	0.3833
74.643	0.0569	0.0532	0.0000	0.3833
74.679	0.0563	0.0546	0.0000	0.3833
74.714	0.0557	0.0560	0.0000	0.3833
74.750	0.0551	0.0574	0.0000	0.3833

Surface retention 1 Hydraulic Table

Stage(feet) Area(ac.)	Volume	(ac-ft.) Discha	arge(cfs) T	o Amended(cfs)	Wetted	Surface
1.7500	0.0875	0.0574	0.0000	0.7937	0.0000		
1.7857	0.0882	0.0605	0.0000	0.7937	0.0000		
1.8214	0.0889	0.0637	0.0000	0.8095	0.0000		
1.8571	0.0897	0.0669	0.0000	0.8254	0.0000		
1.8929	0.0904	0.0701	0.0000	0.8413	0.0000		
1.9286	0.0911	0.0734	0.0000	0.8571	0.0000		
1.9643	0.0918	0.0766	0.0000	0.8730	0.0000		
2.0000	0.0926	0.0799	0.0000	0.8889	0.0000		
2.0357	0.0933	0.0832	0.0000	0.9048	0.0000		
2.0714	0.0940	0.0866	0.0000	0.9206	0.0000		
2.1071	0.0948	0.0900	0.0000	0.9365	0.0000		
2.1429	0.0955	0.0934	0.0000	0.9524	0.0000		
2.1786	0.0962	0.0968	0.0000	0.9683	0.0000		
2.2143	0.0970	0.1002	0.0000	0.9841	0.0000		
2.2500	0.0977	0.1037	0.0000	1.0000	0.0000		
2.2857	0.0985	0.1072	0.0000	1.0159	0.0000		
2.3214	0.0992	0.1107	0.0000	1.0317	0.0000		
2.3571	0.0999	0.1143	0.0000	1.0476	0.0000		
2.3929	0.1007	0.1179	0.0000	1.0635	0.0000		
2.4286	0.1015	0.1215	0.0000	1.0794	0.0000		
2.4643	0.1022	0.1251	0.0000	1.0952	0.0000		
2.5000	0.1030	0.1288	0.0000	1.1111	0.0000		
2.5357	0.1037	0.1325	0.0000	1.1270	0.0000		
2.5714	0.1045	0.1362	0.0000	1.1429	0.0000		
2.6071	0.1052	0.1399	0.0000	1.1587	0.0000		
2.6429	0.1060	0.1437	0.0000	1.1746	0.0000		
2.6786	0.1068	0.1475	0.0000	1.1905	0.0000		
2.7143	0.1075	0.1513	0.0000	1.2064	0.0000		
2.7500	0.1083	0.1552	0.0000	1.2222	0.0000		
2.7857	0.1091	0.1591	0.0716	1.2381	0.0000		
2.8214	0.1099	0.1630	0.2020	1.2540	0.0000		

2.8571	0.1106	0.1669	0.3694	1.2698	0.0000
2.8929	0.1114	0.1709	0.5635	1.2857	0.0000
2.9286	0.1122	0.1749	0.7756	1.3016	0.0000
2.9643	0.1130	0.1789	0.9966	1.3175	0.0000
3.0000	0.1138	0.1829	1.2176	1.3333	0.0000
3.0357	0.1146	0.1870	1.4294	1.3492	0.0000
3.0714	0.1154	0.1911	1.6238	1.3651	0.0000
3.1071	0.1161	0.1953	1.7939	1.3810	0.0000
3.1429	0.1169	0.1994	1.9353	1.3968	0.0000
3.1786	0.1177	0.2036	2.0472	1.4127	0.0000
3.2143	0.1185	0.2078	2.1333	1.4286	0.0000
3.2500	0.1193	0.2121	2.2271	1.4444	0.0000
3.2500	0.1193	0.2121	2.3053	1.4444	0.0000

Name : Surface retention 1

Element Flows To: Outlet 1 Outlet 2 Bioretention 1

> ANALYSIS RESULTS Stream Protection Duration

Predeveloped Landuse Totals for POC #1 Total Pervious Area:2.25 Total Impervious Area:0

Mitigated Landuse Totals for POC #1 Total Pervious Area:0.76 Total Impervious Area:1.49

Flow Frequency	Return	Periods	for	Predevelope	d.	POC	#1
Return Period		Flow(cfs	3)				
2 year		0.0025	582				
5 year		0.0056	501				
10 year		0.0089	985				
25 year		0.0156	592				
50 year		0.0231	88				
100 year		0.0336	536				
Flow Frequency	Return	Periods	for	Mitigated.	POC	: #1	
Return Period		Flow(cfs	3)				
2 year		0					
5 year		0					
10 year		0					
25 year		0					
50 year		0					
100 year		0					

Stream Protection Duration Annual Peaks for Predeveloped and Mitigated. POC #1 Year Predeveloped Mitigated 1949 0.002 0.000 1950 0.005 0.000 1951 0.004 0.000 0.000 1952 0.002 0.002 1953 0.000

1954	0.012	0.000
1955	0.009	0.000
1956	0.002	0.000
1957	0 002	0 000
1958	0 002	0 000
1050	0.002	0.000
1959	0.004	0.000
1960	0.003	0.000
1961	0.008	0.019
1962	0.002	0.000
1963	0.002	0.000
1964	0.006	0.000
1965	0.002	0.000
1966	0.002	0.000
1967	0.004	0.000
1968	0.002	0.000
1969	0.002	0.000
1970	0.002	0.000
1971	0.009	0.000
1972	0 002	0 000
1973	0 002	0.000
1074	0.002	0.000
1075	0.005	0.000
1975	0.002	0.000
1976	0.004	0.000
1977	0.002	0.000
1978	0.002	0.000
1979	0.004	0.000
1980	0.002	0.000
1981	0.002	0.000
1982	0.003	0.000
1983	0.002	0.000
1984	0.002	0.000
1985	0.003	0.000
1986	0.016	0.000
1987	0.010	0.000
1988	0.002	0.000
1989	0.002	0.000
1990	0.002	0.000
1991	0.002	0.000
1992	0.002	0.000
1993	0.002	0.000
1994	0.002	0.000
1995	0.002	0.000
1996	0.020	0.000
1997	0.056	0.000
1998	0.002	0.000
1999	0.002	0.000
2000	0 003	0 000
2001	0 002	0 000
2002	0 002	0.000
2002	0 001	0.000
2003	0 002	0.000
2004	0.002	0.000
2005	0.002	0.000
2000		0.000
2007	0.002	0.000
2008	0.003	0.000
2009	0.002	0.000

Stream	Protection Durat:	ion		
Ranked	Annual Peaks for	Predeveloped and	Mitigated.	POC #1
Rank	Predeveloped	Mitigated		
1	0.0599	0.0189		
2	0.0557	0.0000		

3	0.0203	0.0000
4	0.0158	0.0000
5	0.0124	0.0000
0 7	0.0094	0.0000
8	0.0088	0.0000
9	0.0085	0.0000
10	0.0059	0.0000
11	0.0053	0.0000
12	0.0047	0.0000
13	0.0041	0.0000
14 15	0.0040	0.0000
16	0.0036	0.0000
17	0.0035	0.0000
18	0.0034	0.0000
19	0.0033	0.0000
20	0.0030	0.0000
21	0.0027	0.0000
22	0.0027	0.0000
23 24	0.0018	0.0000
25	0.0018	0.0000
26	0.0018	0.0000
27	0.0018	0.0000
28	0.0018	0.0000
29	0.0018	0.0000
30	0.0018	0.0000
32	0.0018	0.0000
33	0.0018	0.0000
34	0.0018	0.0000
35	0.0018	0.0000
36	0.0018	0.0000
37	0.0018	0.0000
30	0.0018	0.0000
40	0.0018	0.0000
41	0.0018	0.0000
42	0.0018	0.0000
43	0.0018	0.0000
44	0.0018	0.0000
45 46	U.UUL8 0 0018	0.0000
40 47	0.0018	0.0000
48	0.0018	0.0000
49	0.0018	0.0000
50	0.0018	0.0000
51	0.0018	0.0000
52	0.0018	0.0000
53 54	0.0018	0.0000
55	0.0018	0.0000
56	0.0018	0.0000
57	0.0017	0.0000
58	0.0017	0.0000
59	0.0017	0.0000
60 61	U.UU16 0.0012	0.0000
10	0.0015	0.0000

Stream Protection Duration POC #1 The Facility PASSED.

Flow(cfs)	Predev	Mit	Percentage	Pass/Fail
0.0013	2357	1	0	Pass
0.0015	1324	1	0	Pass
0.0017	434	1	0	Pass
0.0020	112	1	0	Pass
0.0022	103	1	0	Pass
0.0024	89	1	1	Pass
0.0026	77	1	1	Pass
0.0028	66	1	1	Pass
0.0031	61	1	1	Pass
0.0033	58	1	1	Pass
0 0035	54	1	1	Pass
0 0037	50	1	2	Pass
0 0039	49	1	2	Pagg
0 0042	47	1	2	Pagg
0 0044	43	1	2	Pagg
0.0011	10	1	2	Dage
0.0040	36	1	2	Dage
0.0040	26	1	2	Paga
0.0051	20	1	2	Paga
0.0055	2∠ 21	1	2	Pass
0.0055	51 21	1	3	Pass
0.0057	20	1	3	Pass
0.0059	29	1	3	Pass
0.0062	29	1	3	Pass
0.0064	27	1	3	Pass
0.0066	20	1	3	Pass
0.0068	26	1	3	Pass
0.0070	26	1	3	Pass
0.0073	25	1	4	Pass
0.0075	23	1	4	Pass
0.0077	23	1	4	Pass
0.0079	23	1	4	Pass
0.0081	23	1	4	Pass
0.0084	23	1	4	Pass
0.0086	21	1	4	Pass
0.0088	19	1	5	Pass
0.0090	18	1	5	Pass
0.0093	17	1	5	Pass
0.0095	16	1	6	Pass
0.0097	16	1	6	Pass
0.0099	15	1	6	Pass
0.0101	15	1	6	Pass
0.0104	14	1	7	Pass
0.0106	13	1	7	Pass
0.0108	13	1	7	Pass
0.0110	13	1	7	Pass
0.0112	13	1	7	Pass
0.0115	13	1	7	Pass
0.0117	13	1	7	Pass
0.0119	13	1	7	Pass
0.0121	13	1	7	Pass
0.0124	13	1	7	Pass
0.0126	11	1	9	Pass
0.0128	11	1	9	Pass
0.0130	11	1	9	Pass
0.0132	11	1	9	Pass
0.0135	11	1	9	Pass
0.0137	11	1	9	Pass
0.0139	11	1	9	Pass

0.0141	11	1	9	Pass
0.0143	11	1	9	Pass
0.0146	11	1	9	Pass
0.0148	11	1	9	Pass
0.0150	11	1	9	Pass
0.0152	11	1	9	Pass
0.0154	11	1	9	Pass
0.0157	10	1	10	Pass
0.0159	9	1	11	Pass
0.0161	9	1	11	Pass
0.0163	8	1	12	Pass
0.0166	8	1	12	Pass
0.0168	8	1	12	Pass
0.0170	8	1	12	Pass
0.0172	8	1	12	Pass
0.0174	8	1	12	Pass
0.0177	8	1	12	Pass
0.0179	8	1	12	Pass
0.0181	8	1	12	Pass
0.0183	8	1	12	Pass
0.0185	8	1	12	Pass
0.0188	8	1	12	Pass
0.0190	8	0	0	Pass
0.0192	8	0	0	Pass
0.0194	8	0	0	Pass
0.0196	7	0	0	Pass
0.0199	7	0	0	Pass
0.0201	7	0	0	Pass
0.0203	7	0	0	Pass
0.0205	6	0	0	Pass
0.0208	6	0	0	Pass
0.0210	6	0	0	Pass
0.0212	6	0	0	Pass
0.0214	6	0	0	Pass
0.0216	6	0	0	Pass
0.0219	б	0	0	Pass
0.0221	6	0	0	Pass
0.0223	6	0	0	Pass
0.0225	6	0	0	Pass
0.0227	6	0	0	Pass
0.0230	5	0	0	Pass
0.0232	5	0	0	Pass

Water Quality BMP Flow and Volume for POC #1 On-line facility volume: 0 acre-feet On-line facility target flow: 0 cfs. Adjusted for 15 min: 0 cfs. Off-line facility target flow: 0 cfs. Adjusted for 15 min: 0 cfs.

LID Report

LID Technique	9	Used for	Total Volume	e Volume	Infiltration
Cumulative	Percent	Water Quality	Percent	Comment	
		Treatment	? Needs	Through	Volume
Volume	Volume		Water Quality		
			Treatment	Facility	(ac-ft.)
Infiltration	Infiltrated		Treated		
			(ac-ft)	(ac-ft)	
Credit					
retention 1	POC	N	268.96		

N 100.00 Total Volume Infiltrated 100.00 0.00 0% Compliance with LID Standard 8 Duration Analysis Result = Passed

Perlnd and Implnd Changes

No changes have been made.

This program and accompanying documentation are provided 'as-is' without warranty of any kind. The entire risk regarding the performance and results of this program is assumed by End User. Clear Creek Solutions Inc. and the governmental licensee or sublicensees disclaim all warranties, either expressed or implied, including but not limited to implied warranties of program and accompanying documentation. In no event shall Clear Creek Solutions Inc. be liable for any damages whatsoever (including without limitation to damages for loss of business profits, loss of business information, business interruption, and the like) arising out of the use of, or inability to use this program even if Clear Creek Solutions Inc. or their authorized representatives have been advised of the possibility of such damages. Software Copyright © by : Clear Creek Solutions, Inc. 2005-2020; All Rights Reserved.

Ray Townhomes Marysville, WA

APPENDIX E East Basin Modeling Calculations

INFILTRATION POND DESIGN CALCULATIONS (EAST BASIN)

WWHM2012 PROJECT REPORT

Project Name: 2020-04-14 Ray East Site Name: Ray Townhomes Site Address: City : Marysville **Report Date:** 4/15/2020 Gage : Everett Data Start : 1948/10/01 Data End : 2009/09/30 Precip Scale: 1.20 Version Date: 2018/10/10 **Version :** 4.2.16 Low Flow Threshold for POC 1 : 50 Percent of the 2 Year High Flow Threshold for POC 1: 50 year PREDEVELOPED LAND USE Name : East Basin Bypass: No GroundWater: No Pervious Land Use acre A B, Forest, Flat .41 Pervious Total 0.41 Impervious Land Use acre Impervious Total 0 Basin Total 0.41 Element Flows To: Surface Interflow Groundwater MITIGATED LAND USE Name : East Basin Bypass: No GroundWater: No Pervious Land Use acre .15 A B, Lawn, Flat Pervious Total 0.15 Impervious Land Use acre ROADS FLAT 0.26

Impervious Total	0.26
Basin Total	0.41

Element Flows To:

SurfaceInterflowGroundwaterTrapezoidal Pond 1Trapezoidal Pond 1

Name : Trapezoidal Pond 1 Bottom Length: 80.00 ft. Bottom Width: 6.00 ft. Depth: 2 ft. Volume at riser head: 0.0172 acre-feet. Infiltration On Infiltration rate: 6.9 Infiltration safety factor: 1 Total Volume Infiltrated (ac-ft.): 50.318 Total Volume Through Riser (ac-ft.): 0.001 Total Volume Through Facility (ac-ft.): 50.319 Percent Infiltrated: 100 Total Precip Applied to Facility: 0 Total Evap From Facility: 0 Side slope 1: 3 To 1 Side slope 2: 3 To 1 Side slope 3: 3 To 1 Side slope 4: 3 To 1

Discharge Structure

Riser Height: 1 ft. Riser Diameter: 12 in.

Element Flows To: Outlet 1 Outlet 2

	Pond Hyd	draulic Tab	le		
Stage(fe	et) Area(a	c.) Volume	(ac-ft.)	Discharge(cfs)	Infilt(cfs)
73.000	0.011	0.000	0.000	0.000	
73.022	0.011	0.000	0.000	0.076	
73.044	0.011	0.000	0.000	0.076	
73.067	0.011	0.000	0.000	0.076	
73.089	0.012	0.001	0.000	0.076	
73.111	0.012	0.001	0.000	0.076	
73.133	0.012	0.001	0.000	0.076	
73.156	0.012	0.001	0.000	0.076	
73.178	0.013	0.002	0.000	0.076	
73.200	0.013	0.002	0.000	0.076	
73.222	0.013	0.002	0.000	0.076	
73.244	0.014	0.003	0.000	0.076	
73.267	0.014	0.003	0.000	0.076	
73.289	0.014	0.003	0.000	0.076	
73.311	0.014	0.004	0.000	0.076	
73.333	0.015	0.004	0.000	0.076	
73.356	0.015	0.004	0.000	0.076	
73.378	0.015	0.005	0.000	0.076	
73.400	0.015	0.005	0.000	0.076	
73.422	0.016	0.005	0.000	0.076	
73.444	0.016	0.006	0.000	0.076	
73.467	0.016	0.006	0.000	0.076	
73.489	0.017	0.006	0.000	0.076	
73.511	0.017	0.007	0.000	0.076	

73.533	0.017	0.007	0.000	0.076
73.556	0.017	0.008	0.000	0.076
73.578	0.018	0.008	0.000	0.076
73.600	0.018	0.008	0.000	0.076
73.622	0.018	0.009	0.000	0.076
73.644	0.019	0.009	0.000	0.076
73.667	0.019	0.010	0.000	0.076
73.689	0.019	0.010	0.000	0.076
73.711	0.019	0.010	0.000	0.076
73.733	0.020	0.011	0.000	0.076
73.756	0.020	0.011	0.000	0.076
73.778	0.020	0.012	0.000	0.076
73.800	0.021	0.012	0.000	0.076
73.822	0.021	0.013	0.000	0.076
73.844	0.021	0.013	0.000	0.076
73.867	0.021	0.014	0.000	0.076
73.889	0.022	0.014	0.000	0.076
73.911	0.022	0.015	0.000	0.076
73.933	0.022	0.015	0.000	0.076
73.956	0.023	0.016	0.000	0.076
73.978	0.023	0.016	0.000	0.076
74.000	0.023	0.017	0.000	0.076
74.022	0.024	0.017	0.035	0.076
74.044	0.024	0.018	0.099	0.076
74.067	0.024	0.018	0.182	0.076
74.089	0.024	0.019	0.280	0.076
74.111	0.025	0.019	0.389	0.076
74.133	0.025	0.020	0.509	0.076
74.156	0.025	0.021	0.637	0.076
74.178	0.026	0.021	0.770	0.076
74.200	0.026	0.022	0.907	0.076
74.222	0.026	0.022	1.046	0.076
74.244	0.027	0.023	1.183	0.076
74.267	0.027	0.024	1.318	0.076
74.289	0.027	0.024	1.447	0.076
74.311	0.028	0.025	1.569	0.076
74.333	0.028	0.025	1.683	0.076
74.356	0.028	0.026	1.786	0.076
74.378	0.028	0.027	1.879	0.076
74.400	0.029	0.027	1.960	0.076
74.422	0.029	0.028	2.029	0.076
74.444	0.029	0.029	2.088	0.076
74.467	0.030	0.029	2.138	0.076
74.489	0.030	0.030	2.182	0.076
74.511	0.030	0.031	2.251	0.076
/4.533	0.031	0.031	2.300	0.076
74.556	0.031	0.032	2.347	0.076
/4.5/8	0.031	0.033	2.394	0.076
74.600	0.032	0.033	2.439	0.076
74.622	0.032	0.034	2.484	0.076
74.644	0.032	0.035	2.528	0.076
74.667	0.033	0.036	2.5/1	0.076
74.009	0.033	0.036	2.014	0.076
/4./⊥⊥ 7/ 700	0.033	0.03/	2.000	
14.133	0.034	0.030	∠.01/ 2 .07	0.076
0C/.±/	0.034	0.039	2.131 2.777	0.076
74.//ð	0.034	0.039	∠./// 2 017	
74.000 71 000	0.035	0.040	∠.0⊥/ 2 0⊑⊂	
/ 4.022 7/ 0//	0.035	0.041	2.000 2 001	0.076
74 867	0.035	0.042	∠.094 0 020	0.076
74 QQA	0.030	0.043	2.332	0.076
71 011	0.030	0.043	2.909	0.076
/ サ・フエエ	0.030	0.044	3.000	0.076

74.933	0.037	0.045	3.042	0.076	
74.956	0.037	0.046	3.078	0.076	
74.978	0.037	0.047	3.114	0.076	
75.000	0.038	0.047	3.149	0.076	
75.022	0.038	0.048	3.184	0.076	

ANALYSIS RESULTS

Stream Protection Duration

Predeveloped Landuse Totals for POC #1 Total Pervious Area:0.41 Total Impervious Area:0

Mitigated Landuse Totals for POC #1 Total Pervious Area:0.15 Total Impervious Area:0.26

Flow Frequency	Return	Periods	for	Predeveloped.	POC #1
Return Period		Flow(cfs	3)		
2 year		0.0004	1 71		
5 year		0.0010)21		
10 year		0.0010	537		
25 year		0.0028	359		
50 year		0.0042	225		
100 year		0.0061	L29		
Flow Froguency	Poturn	Periods	for	Mitigated T	00 #1
FIOW FIEddency	Recurn	I CI IOUD		Micigaceu.	
Return Period	Kecurn	Flow(cfs	3)	Mitigatea.	00 #1
Return Period 2 year	Kecurn	Flow(cfs	5)	mitigated. I	
Return Period 2 year 5 year	Recurn	Flow(cfs 0 0	<u>3)</u>	Miligated.	
Return Period 2 year 5 year 10 year	Keturn	Flow(cfs 0 0 0	<u> </u>	Mitigated.	
Return Period 2 year 5 year 10 year 25 year	Kecurii	Flow(cfs 0 0 0 0	 <u>3)</u>	mitigated.	
Return Period 2 year 5 year 10 year 25 year 50 year	Kecurii	Flow(cfs 0 0 0 0 0 0	<u> </u>	mitigated.	

Stream	Protec	tior	n Duration				
Annual	Peaks	for	Predeveloped	and	Mitigated.	POC	#1

Year	Predeveloped	Mitigated
1949	0.000	0.000
1950	0.001	0.000
1951	0.001	0.000
1952	0.000	0.000
1953	0.000	0.000
1954	0.002	0.000
1955	0.002	0.000
1956	0.000	0.000
1957	0.000	0.000
1958	0.000	0.000
1959	0.001	0.000
1960	0.001	0.000
1961	0.002	0.023
1962	0.000	0.000
1963	0.000	0.000
1964	0.001	0.000
1965	0.000	0.000

1966	0.000	0.000
1967	0.001	0.000
1968	0.000	0.000
1969	0.000	0.000
1970	0.000	0.000
1971	0.002	0.000
1972	0.000	0.000
1973	0.000	0.000
1974	0.001	0.000
1975	0.000	0.000
1976	0.001	0.000
1977	0.000	0.000
1978	0.000	0.000
1979	0.001	0.000
1980	0.000	0.000
1981	0.000	0.000
1982	0.000	0.000
1983	0.000	0.000
1984	0.000	0.000
1985	0.001	0.000
1986	0.003	0.000
1987	0.002	0.000
1988	0.000	0.000
1989	0.000	0.000
1990	0.000	0.000
1991	0.000	0.000
1992	0.000	0.000
1993	0.000	0.000
1994	0.000	0.000
1995	0.000	0.000
1996	0.004	0.000
1997	0.010	0.000
1998	0.000	0.000
1999	0.000	0.000
2000	0.001	0.000
2001	0.000	0.000
2002	0.000	0.000
2003	0.000	0.000
2004	0.000	0.000
2005	0.000	0.000
2006	0.011	0.000
2007	0.000	0.000
2008	0.000	0.000
2009	0.000	0.000

Stream Protection DurationRanked Annual Peaks for Predeveloped and Mitigated. POC #1RankPredevelopedMitigated10.01090.023120.01020.0000

2	0.0102	0.0000
3	0.0037	0.0000
4	0.0029	0.0000
5	0.0023	0.0000
6	0.0019	0.0000
7	0.0017	0.0000
8	0.0016	0.0000
9	0.0015	0.0000
10	0.0011	0.0000
11	0.0010	0.0000
12	0.0009	0.0000
13	0.0007	0.0000
14	0.0007	0.0000

15	0.0007	0.0000	
16	0.0007	0.0000	
17	0.0006	0.0000	
18	0.0006	0.0000	
19	0.0006	0.0000	
20	0.0005	0.0000	
21	0.0005	0.0000	
22	0.0005	0.0000	
23	0.0004	0.0000	
24	0.0003	0.0000	
25	0.0003	0.0000	
26	0.0003	0.0000	
27	0.0003	0.0000	
28	0.0003	0.0000	
29	0.0003	0.0000	
30	0.0003	0.0000	
31	0.0003	0.0000	
32	0.0003	0.0000	
33	0.0003	0.0000	
34	0.0003	0.0000	
35	0.0003	0.0000	
36	0.0003	0.0000	
37	0.0003	0.0000	
38	0.0003	0.0000	
39	0.0003	0.0000	
40	0.0003	0.0000	
41	0.0003	0.0000	
42	0.0003	0.0000	
43	0.0003	0.0000	
44	0.0003	0.0000	
45	0.0003	0.0000	
46	0.0003	0.0000	
47	0.0003	0.0000	
48	0.0003	0.0000	
49	0.0003	0.0000	
50	0.0003	0.0000	
51	0.0003	0.0000	
52	0.0003	0.0000	
53	0.0003	0.0000	
54	0.0003	0.0000	
55	0.0003	0.0000	
56	0.0003	0.0000	
57	0.0003	0.0000	
58	0.0003	0.0000	
59	0.0003	0.0000	
60	0.0003	0.0000	
61	0.0002	0.0000	

Stream Protection Duration POC #1 The Facility PASSED

The Facility PASSED.

Flow(cfs)	Predev	Mit	Percentag	e Pass/Fail
0.0002	2363	4	0	Pass
0.0003	1343	4	0	Pass
0.0003	431	4	0	Pass
0.0004	112	4	3	Pass
0.0004	103	4	3	Pass
0.0004	89	4	4	Pass
0.0005	77	4	5	Pass

0.0005	66	4	6	Pass
0.0006	61	4	6	Pass
0.0006	58	4	6	Pass
0.0006	54	4	7	Pass
0.0007	50	4	8	Pass
0.0007	49	4	8	Pass
0.0008	47	4	8	Pass
0.0008	43	4	9	Pass
0.0008	40	4	10	Pass
0.0009	36	4	11	Pass
0.0009	36	4	11	Pass
0.0010	32	4	12	Pass
0.0010	31	4	12	Pass
0.0010	31	4	12	Pass
0.0011	29	4	13	Pass
0.0011	29	4	13	Pass
0.0012	27	4	14	Pass
0.0012	26	4	15	Pass
0.0012	26	4	15	Pass
0.0013	26	4	15	Pass
0.0013	25	4	16	Pass
0.0014	23	4	17	Pass
0.0014	23	4	17	Pass
0.0014	23	4	17	Pass
0.0015	23	4	17	Pass
0.0015	23	4	17	Pass
0.0016	21	4	19	Pass
0.0016	19	4	21	Pass
0.0016	18	4	22	Pass
0.0017	17	4	23	Pass
0.0017	16	4	25	Pass
0.0018	16	4	25	Pass
0.0018	15	4	26	Pass
0.0018	15	4	26	Pass
0.0019	14	4	28	Pass
0.0019	13	4	30	Pass
0.0020	13	4	30	Pass
0.0020	13	4	30	Pass
0.0020	13	4	30	Pass
0.0021	13	4	30	Pass
0.0021	13	4	30	Pass
0.0022	13	4	30	Pass
0.0022	13	4	30	Pass
0.0023	13	4	30	Pass
0.0023	11	4	36	Pass
0.0023	11	4	36	Pass
0.0024	11	4	36	Pass
0.0024	11	4	36	Pass
0.0025	11	4	36	Pass
0.0025	11	4	36	Pass
0.0025	11	4	36	Pass
0.0026	11	4	36	Pass
0.0026	11	4	36	Pass
0.0027	11	4	36	Pass
0.0027	11	4	36	Pass
0.0027	11	4	36	Pass
0.0028	11	4	36	Pass
0.0028	10	4	40	Pass
0.0029	10	4	40	Pass
0.0029	9	4	44	Pass
0.0029	9	4	44	Pass
0.0030	8	4	50	Pass
0.0030	8	4	50	Pass

0.0031	8	4	50	Pass
0.0031	8	4	50	Pass
0.0031	8	4	50	Pass
0.0032	8	4	50	Pass
0.0032	8	4	50	Pass
0.0033	8	4	50	Pass
0.0033	8	4	50	Pass
0.0033	8	4	50	Pass
0.0034	8	4	50	Pass
0.0034	8	4	50	Pass
0.0035	8	4	50	Pass
0.0035	8	4	50	Pass
0.0035	8	4	50	Pass
0.0036	7	4	57	Pass
0.0036	7	4	57	Pass
0.0037	7	4	57	Pass
0.0037	7	4	57	Pass
0.0037	6	4	66	Pass
0.0038	6	4	66	Pass
0.0038	6	4	66	Pass
0.0039	6	4	66	Pass
0.0039	6	4	66	Pass
0.0039	6	4	66	Pass
0.0040	6	4	66	Pass
0.0040	6	4	66	Pass
0.0041	6	4	66	Pass
0.0041	6	4	66	Pass
0.0041	6	4	66	Pass
0.0042	5	4	80	Pass
0.0042	5	4	80	Pass

Water Quality BMP Flow and Volume for POC #1 On-line facility volume: 0 acre-feet On-line facility target flow: 0 cfs. Adjusted for 15 min: 0 cfs. Off-line facility target flow: 0 cfs. Adjusted for 15 min: 0 cfs.

LID Report

Used for	Total Volume	Volume	Infiltration
Water Quality	Percent C	omment	
Treatment?	2 Needs	Through	Volume
	Water Quality		
	Treatment	Facility	(ac-ft.)
	Treated		
	(ac-ft)	(ac-ft)	
N	45.79		
	45.79	0.00	0.00
0%	No Treat. Cred	it	
lard 8			
= Passed			
	Used for Water Quality Treatment? N 0% lard 8 = Passed	Used for Total Volume Water Quality Percent C Treatment? Needs Water Quality Treatment Treated (ac-ft) N 45.79 0% No Treat. Cred lard 8 = Passed	Used for Total Volume Volume Water Quality Percent Comment Treatment? Needs Through Water Quality Treatment Facility Treated (ac-ft) (ac-ft) N 45.79 0.00 0% No Treat. Credit Water Quality Treated (ac-ft) 0.00 No Treat. Credit

Perlnd and Implnd Changes

No changes have been made.

This program and accompanying documentation are provided 'as-is' without warranty of any kind. The entire risk regarding the performance and results of this program is assumed by End User. Clear Creek Solutions Inc. and the governmental licensee or sublicensees disclaim all warranties, either expressed or implied, including but not limited to implied warranties of program and accompanying documentation. In no event shall Clear Creek Solutions Inc. be liable for any damages whatsoever (including without limitation to damages for loss of business profits, loss of business information, business interruption, and the like) arising out of the use of, or inability to use this program even if Clear Creek Solutions Inc. or their authorized representatives have been advised of the possibility of such damages. Software Copyright © by : Clear Creek Solutions, Inc. 2005-2020; All Rights Reserved.